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Company Profile

Middlesex Water Company was incorporated as a water utility company in 1897 and owns and operates
regulated warter utility and wastewater systems in New Jersey and Delaware. The Company also operates water
and wastewarer systems under contract on behalf of municipal and private clients in New Jersey and Delaware.
The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol MSEX.

Financial Highlights

(Millians of Dollars, Fecept per Share Data) 2008 2007 2006
Operating Revenues $91.0 $86.1 $81.1
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 48,9 46.2 43.3
Depreciation 7.9 T 7.1
Income and Orcher Taxes 16.2 15.4 14.4
Interest Charges 7.1 6.6 7.0
Net Income 12.2 11.8 10.0
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock 12.0 11.6 9.8
Basic Earnings per Share 0.90 0.88 0.83
Diluted Earnings per Share 0.89 0.87 0.82
Cash Dividends Paid per Share 0.70 0.69 0.68
Utility Plant 430.1 398.6 370.6
Return on Average Common Equity 8.6% 8.9% 9.4%
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Our Services

= Water Production, Treatment = Ownership and Operation of Utilities = Utility Billing and Collections
and Distribution = Plant Operations and Maintenance = Community Irrigation
= \Wastewater Collection and = Public/Private Partnerships = Water and Wastewater Contract

Treatment = Water and Sewer Line Maintenance Operations

On the cover: The Round Valley Reservoir is a critical pare of the Raritan Basin Water Supply and a vital water supply resource for
Middlesex Weater enstomers.



To Our Shareholders IDDLESEX

ATER COMPANY

As we reflect on 2008, we sce a year filled with extraordinary volatility in our
national economy, a heightened awareness of our nation’s subsrandal need for
infrastructure upgrade and replacement and your company’s continued evolution
as a stable and growing provider of critical utility services.

We reported favorable financial resules for 2008 despite ongoing economic
uneertainties which affected many more companies and individuals over the past
year. A continued slowdown in residential construction and continued righrening
in the credit markers posed new challenges, bur we were nonetheless able 1o
achieve reasonable growth in revenues and customers, maintain appropriace
operational integrity, finance our capiral construcrion needs ar reasonable rares

and support our customers and our communities in numerous ways. While che Jaft to right:

economic challenges continue to be felt by many companies, your investment Dennis W, Doli

in Middlesex Warer Company s largely backed by a reasonably predictable FroioAnea RS EXaciohs oy

revenue stream, a stable customer base, equity-based investments and the J. Richard Tompkins
Chairman of the Board

stability of a marure regulatory model in the jurisdictions where we serve.
Our announcement in Seprember that we intend to operare as a regulared

utility in Neorth Carolina is a significant milestone for your company. As we have

communicated in recent years, the continued and growing need for vital water “The g?*awing need
and wastewarer services in many places in the country is providing us with
opportunities to expand our geographic footprint in a manner that can provide ﬁr vital water and

further opportunity for our sharcholders, without deviating from the risk/reward . .
profile thar we manage to in our companies in New Jersey and Delaware. wastewater services
A number of our shareholders frequendy provide positve feedback abour our in many prfaces
strong dividend record and related dividend yield, our disciplined approach i

to further growth and profitabilicy and our continued commirment w remain in the l'."ﬂﬂﬂt?"y
focused on our core competencies. In looking back ar 2008, we believe this

discipline has served our sharcholders well. Although the company’s share price e P?‘ﬂl}ldﬂ'ﬂg us

has seen some volatility in the marker, on balance we have fared better than with OPPGTMHIIH?ES
many during these uncertain times in preserving sharcholder value, all while

mecting numerous operational and financial objectives, to expand our
Maintaining Infrastructure and Water Quality geogr. dp}} L

We met numerous infrastructure needs in 2008 in the areas of warer production, fbﬂtpi’fﬁfn »

distribution and warer and wastewarer trearment, Our capirtal management

process is critical in meeting our short-term needs, and also is helping to identify
and plan for infrastrucrure investment thar will be required ro serve our nexe
generation of customers. Examples include the completion of a large filter
rehabilitation project at our Carl |. Olson Treatment Plant in New Jersey; the
conclusion of a prudence review before the New Jersey Board of Public Urilities
regarding construction of the next phase of a major rransmission pipeline in
Middlesex County, Mew Jersey: a project currently in-progress to eliminate
hazardous gaseous chlorine from the warer treatment process and replace it with

Ticker: NASDAQ: MSEX Service Areas: Population Served: Dividend History:
Year Established: 1897 Parts of New Jersey and {Retail) Quarterly dividends paid
Headquarters: Iselin, NJ Delaware 451,500 since 1912
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a liquid form thar is safer o our employees and 1o the
environment; completion of the thireenth year of our
rwenty-five year “RENEW™ program to clean and cement-
line hundreds of miles of aging unlined water mains for
improved pressures and water quality; and improvements in
supply, treatment and distribution capabilities at numerous
facilities in our Delaware service territory.

We continue o keep an appropriate focus on long-term
planning for our sources of water supply as well as our
production and distribution capabilities. Analysis of
water quality and the related public health impacts are
a significant ongoing priority for our Federal and Stare
environmental regulators. Through our active parricipation
in various organizations we work with regulators to ensure
the coordination of planning effores.

These are just some of the examples of the many
contributions made by our comperent and dedicared
employees throughour the year.

In our Delaware operations we have been successful in
combining our commitment to reliable, envirenmentally-
friendly water and wastewater solutions with sound public
policy for growth and infrastrucoure, We received approval
in December 2008 from the Sussex County, Delaware
Couneil 1o construct two regional wastewarer collection
and trearment facilities thar mer several objectives. Those
objectives included: 1). effecting growth in geographic

areas thar are most desirable by the governing bodies and
citizens, 2}, preserving open space in perpetuity for farm-
land preservation that is so important o the heritage

of the many proud farming families, and o Delaware
residents at-large, 3). developing reliable, environmentally-
friendly solutions that are designed with state-of the-art
wreatment technology ro meet all water and wastewarer
regulatory standards but also, blend into the surrounding
landscape as unobrrusively as possible and 4), meeting

the needs of developers to deliver successful residential and
commercial projects with affordable utility user races for
their, and ultimarely our, customers.

Owr highly skilled personnel have made improvements
in recent years in developing preventive maintenance
programs to ensure sustained water quality and pressures.
As we further implement new technology, we expeet more
improvements in quality and cost-effectiveness of these
critical functions.

Sustainability of Utility Services

The “sustainabiliy” of vital resources is a term thar has
captured substantial attention in national and local forums
during 2008, We have seen considerable interest by governing
bodies, ar all levels, in ensuring the sustainability of our
natural resources and in preserving the continued ability

to meet critical infrastructure needs and deliver vital

We invest in projects to upgrade and maintain our infrastructure
to ensure safe, plentiful drinking water for residentiol, commercial,
industrial and fire protection purposes. We reguiarly exarmine

our processes, operations and technology to ensure efficient
management of our water resources.

In constructing utility infrastructure, we work with developers and
local government ta establish growth where it is desired. This regional
wastewater treatment focility utilizes treatment technology that
recharges the groundwater aquifer while enhancing the quality of
life for area residents.

Middlesex Water has teamed with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s WaterSense® program

EPA

WaterSense
PARTMER

- to help consumers save water for future generations through the use of water-efficient products and
simple water-saving practices. As an EPA WaterSense partner, and through our outreach efforts,
we are working to improve awareness that protecting and preserving our nation's enerqgy and water

supplies is critical to our economy, our environment and our quality of life.
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urility services. The concepr of sustainability has always
been an ongoing aspect of Middlesex Water Company’s
business; from strategic planning for infrastructure needs

to capital investment, 1o rate recovery of those investments,
to day-to day operations and maintenance, o customer
education advocating wise water use, erc. As our warer and
wastewarter infrastructure continues wo age and grow, the
quality of our programs in these various areas is critical 1o
ensuring our ability o meet the needs of current and future
customers. We believe thar managing all of our resources
with an appropriate focus on the impact to our environment
not only serves the greater good now, but also enables us

to sustain the reliability of operations well into the furure,
which s integral to our ongoing ability to meet sharcholder
expectations for growth and proficability.

Our commirment to mainraining sustainable uriliny
services was publicly acknowledged in several ways during
2008, In March, Middlesex Water Company was named one
of Americds “Top 100 Most Trustworthy Publicly-Owned
Companies” by Audit Integrity Ine. for transparency in
our corporate governance and financial reporting. We were
honored as "Ourstanding Green Business of the Year” by
the Edison, New Jersey Chamber of Commerce for our
commitment to alternarive energy in the warer treatment
process, Our Delaware operations were voted “Best in the
Business” in a survey conducted by the Delaware News

Journal. We participated in various public events as speakers
and facilimrors o promote the importane role our company
and others play in maintaining the sustainability of our
resources and our urdlity services. These honors and activities
simply highlight our commitment to operational and
financial in tr:grit:,' which clc;lﬂy are irnp(:rt::nt contributors
to continued improvements in sharcholder value.

Leveraging Technology

Middlesex Warer Company, along with the warer and
wastewater industries in general, is employing new

tech rmlug'u,'s to hr:|p ensure the _su:itairmb'iliry of our water
supplies, the quality of wastewarer effluent thar is rerurned
to the environment and the overall efficiency of our
business. An important component of our ongoing capital
program is the periodic evaluation of the benefits of various
technology options. As we upgrade or replace existing
infrascructure and construce new facilities, we consider

the different technologies available to us 1 ensure we are
achieving a sound balance between the environmental
impact and the cost-effectiveness of each project. This
approach enables us o meer all environmental regulatory
requirements while also maximizing the opportunity to
deliver cost-effective solutions that translate into reasonable
rates to our customers and consequently, reasonable
investment returns for our sharcholders,

The Company was nomed "Quistanding Green Business” in 2008
Jor its commitment to renewable energy and its role as an
environmental steward,

Our new technology platform will impact all business areas including
Customer Care and Br'ﬂr'ng, Humon Resources, Asset Management
and Accounts Payable, Integrating Mobile Workforce Management
will ensure a tighter ink between customer service requests and
field waork.

In 2008, Middlesex Water Company was named one of America’s Top 100 Most Trustworthy Companies

for accounting practices and corporate governance according to Audit Integrity, an independent
Los Angaeles firm that researches corporate governance best practices. Middlesex was one of four

a audit integrity

utilities to make the 2008 Audit Integrity Top 100 list and ranked Gth among small-cap companies.
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The following examples from 2008 highlight our
continued efforts to leverage technology:

Building on the consolidation of our Delaware and
MNew Jersey customer call centers into a single location
in 2007, we completed a conversion in 2008 10 a new
telephone system with standardized technology across
Deelaware and New Jersey. This change helps measure call
center activity which maximizes our ability to respond o
customers needs, facilitates more efficient communications
within our company and provides us with a greater abiliry
to measure our performance. As we continue to grow the
business into different geographic arcas, this standardized
approach will be crirical in our implementation of
replicable business processes.

We completed the first phase of a multi-year meter
reading rechnology peoject. We are implementing new
mieter reading software to turther accelerate our automared
meter reading capabilities. This project requires retrofitting
existing meter equipment and installing new devices within
custemers homes, New installations are being made o
accommodate an ultimate move 1o auromated meter reading,

We continue to focus on improving end-to-end business
processes through our Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system implementation which began in 2008 and will
continue throughour 2009. ERP rechnology will auromare
many tasks which are currently performed manually. In
addition, the ERP system will provide better measurement
tools and help streamline our business processes for more
effective service delivery. This is expected to result in
improvements in the quality of custamer service and
in overall reducrions in the cost of delivering service.

Championing
Sustainability Initiatives

& Middlesex Warer Company

Achieving Results through Dedicated Professionals
Our employees have made significant contributions
throughour 2008 to the progress and successes described
above. We are implementing innovative changes in various
aspects of our business and continue to challenge our
employees daily to deliver their personal best for the benefic
of our customers and our sharcholders. Our employees
handle numerous priorities, from improving business
processes, to performing their day-to-day operations, with a
constant focus on enhancing the quality of service, We are
grateful for their commirment, skill and personal sacrifice
without which our successes would not be possible.

We were saddened by the recent passing of Stephen H.
Mundy, a member of the Board of Directors for over 30
years. Mr. Mundy was a nephew of Ambrose Mundy, the
Company's third president. His wisdom and counsel as a
Board member has been a vital pare of the Company's
development and expansion. We extend our heartfelt
sympathies to his family as well as our gratitude for his
years of dedicared service.

As Middlesex Warer Company continues 1o evolve o
meet the needs of present and future customers, we hope
you share our enthusiasm for the successes we have
achieved and for the exciting plans we have in place w
develop further value for our sharcholders. We recognize
the challenges all companics are facing with respect w our
national economy but we remain confident that your
company will effectively weather these cyclical challenges,
as we have for 112 years. Thank you for your continued

oo, K. Lo

Derrrs W, Dowt,
Previdens and Chief Executive Officer

confidence and support.

j?ﬂf‘ %—ﬁ—;—/ :
]. Ricnaro Tomrekins
Chairman of the Board

We're working to preserve natural resources for future
generations in the following ways:

* Practicing responsible water and wastewater management
practices

* Utilizing renewahle energy

= Implementing measures to reduce paper (online bill payment,
Internet availability of Annual Meeting materials)

= Promoting wastewater strategies that help replenish
groundwater aguifers

* Recycling efforts

# Our RENEW Program, which results in fewer main breaks,
less energy demand on our pumps and less water loss

= Educating our customers about wise water use

= Helping developers maximize density in regional
water planning




Jubehm that managing all af our resources with

Can appropriate focus on the impact to our environment
not only serves the greater good now, but also enables us
to sustain the reliability of operations well into the future,
which is integral to our ongoing ability to meet
shareholder expectations for growth and profitability.”

Dennis W. Doll
President and Chief Executive Officer

IDDLESEX
ATER COMPANY

Middlesex Water Company 2008 Annual Report Financial Data



Middlesex Water Company

CONSOLIDATED SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Operating Revenues $ 91,038 $ 806,114 $ 81,061 $ 74,613 5 70,991
Operating Expenses:
Operations and Maintenance 48,929 46,240 43,345 42,156 39,984
Depreciation 7:922 7,539 7060 6,460 5,846
Orher Taxes 10,168 9,664 9,338 8,779 8,228
Tortal Operating Expenses 67,019 63,443 59,743 57,395 54,058
Operating Income 24,019 22,671 21,318 17,218 16,933
Other Income, Net 1,302 1,527 774 740 795
Ineerest Charges 7057 6,619 7,012 6,245 5.468
Income Taxes 6,056 5,736 5,041 3,237 3814
Ner Income 12,208 11,843 10,039 8476 8,446
Preferred Stock Dividend 218 248 248 251 255
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock $ 11,990 $ 11,595 § 9791 $ 8215 § 8,191
Earnings per Share:
Basic £ 0.9 5 088 3 083 3 072 5 074
Diluted $§ 0.89 § 087 £ 0382 £ 071 § 073
Average Shares Outstanding:
Basic 13,317 13,203 11,844 11,445 11,080
Dilured 13,615 13,534 12,175 11,784 11,423
Dividends Declared and Paid £ 0,703 5 0.693 5 0683 5 0.673 5 0663
Total Assets $440,000 $392,675 3370267 £324,383 $305,634
Convertible Preferred Stock $ 2273 $ 2856 § 28% § 2,85 & 2961
Long-term Debt $118,217 5131.615 130,706 128,175 §115,281
STATISTICAL SUMMARY
REVEMNUES (Thousands q,rDoMrr!J.' 2008 2007 20006 2005 2004
Residential $ 41,049 § 38,792 5 34,584 $ 31,289 $ 28,322
Commercial 8,786 8,358 8.107 7,297 6,771
Industrial 8,511 8,513 8,659 8,183 7,708
Fire Protection 9,461 8,882 8,635 7.742 7.237
Contract Sales 11,892 10,749 9,937 10,024 9,086
Contract Operations 9,539 8,832 8,878 8,082 7,934
Other 1,800 1,988 2,261 1,996 3,933
TOTAL REVENUES % 91,038 § 86,114 5 81.061 § 74,613 § 70,991
CAPITALIZATION RATIOS:
Long-term Debt 49% 50% 50% 55% 54 %
Preferred Stock 1 1 1 2 2
Common Stock Equity 50 49 49 43 44
TOTAL 100% 100 % 100 % 100 % 100%
OTHER:
Book Value of Common Stock § 10.13 $ 987 § B8.86 $§ 836 § 799
Customers 137,300 132,000 125,200 119,800 115,000
Population Served (Rerail) 451,500 434,600 421,400 407,500 400,000
Miles of Main 1,376 1,343 1,306 1,250 1,215
Fire Hydranes 7,642 7.216 6,821 4,595 6,306
Whater Production (million gallons) 20,949 21,731 20,594 21,196 20,344




Middlesex Water Company

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company’s historical results of operations and financial condition should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related notes.

Owverview

Middlesex Warer Company has operated as a warer urility in New Jersey since 1897, and in Delaware, through our
wholly-owned subsidiary, Tidewarer, since 1992, We are in the business of collecting, treating and distributing water
for domestic, commercial, municipal, industrial and fire protection purposes. We also operate a New Jersey municipal
water and wastewater system under coneract and provide wastewater services in New Jersey and Delaware through our
subsidiaries. We are regulated as to rates charged to customers for water and wastewater services, as to the quality of
water service we provide and as to certain other matters in New Jersey and in Delaware, Only our USA, USA-TPA and
White Marsh subsidiaries are not regulated uuilicies.

In the design of water and wastewater systems that we ultimarely intend o construct, own and operate, we invest
capital in Preliminary Survey and Investigation (PS&1) activities. These costs are recorded as a deferred asset on the
balance sheet in anticipation of recovery of and a return on, these costs through future rates charged o customers,
as these investments are placed into service as utility plant. Our future capital expenditures are discussed in more
detail in the Liquidity and Capital Resources Section below,

QOur New Jersey water utility system (the Middlesex System) provides water services to approximarely 59,700 rerail
customers, primarily in central New Jersey. The Middlesex System also provides warter service under contract to
municipalities in central New Jersey with a toral population of approximately 303,000, In partmership with our
subsidiary, USA-PA, we operate the water supply system and wastewater system for the City of Perth Amboy,

Mew Jersey. Our other New Jersey subsidiaries, Pinclands Water and Pinelands Wastewater, provide water and
wastewater services to residents in Southampron Township, New Jersey.

Our Delaware subsidiaries, Tidewater and Southern Shores, provide warter services to approximarely 35,500 retail
customers in New Castle, Kent and Sussex Counries, Delaware. Our TESI subsidiary provides wastewarer services
to approximately 1,800 residential retail customers. Our other Delaware subsidiary, White Marsh, services an
additional 7,200 customers in Kent and Sussex Counties through 68 operations and maintenance contracts.

The majority of our revenue is generated from retail and contract warter services to customers in our service areas.

We record warer service revenue as such service is rendered and include estimates for amounts unbilled ar the end of
the period for services provided after the last billing eycle. Fixed service charges are billed in advance by our subsidiary,
Tidewater, and are recognized in revenue as the service is provided.

We expect the growth of our regulared wastewater operations in Delaware will eventually become a more significant
component of our operations,

In Seprember 2008, we entered into an agreement o own and operate a warer and wastewater facility system thar is
expected to serve 1,500 people in North Carolina. Planning is under way to gain approval from the North Carolina
Public Service Commission to operate these systems as regulated public utilities, which are expected to be ready to
serve customers during the third quarter of 2009,

On January 26, 2009 Tidewater filed an application with the PSC seeking permission to increase its base rates by
32.54%. Approximarely 5.25% of the requested increase is already collecred from customers through a separacely



Middlesex Warer Company

PSC-approved rate called a Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC). The request was made necessary by
increased costs of operations, maintenance and taxes, as well as capital investment of approximately $26.7 million since
its last rate filing in April of 2006, We cannot predict whether the PSC will ultimately approve, deny, or reduce the
amount of the request. Concurrent with the rate filing, Tidewarer also submired a request for a 12.79% interim rate
increase subject to refund as allowed under PSC regulations. The interim rate increase includes the 5.25% DSIC rare.
If approved hy the PSC, the interim rates of 12.79% will go into effect on March 27, 2009 and the DSIC rate will be
ser 1o ZeTo.

Our ability to increase operating income and net income is based significantly on four factors: weather, adequate and
timely rate relief, effective cost management, and customer growth. These factors are evident in the discussions below
which compare our results of operations from prior vears.

Operating Results by Segment

The Company has two operating segments, Regulated and Non-Regulated. Our Regulated segment contributed 89%,
90% and 89% of roral revenues, and 90%, 94% and 94% of net income for the years ended December 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The discussion of the Company’s results of operations is on a consolidated basis, and
includes significant factors by subsidiary. The segments in the tables included below are comprised of the following
companies: Regulated- Middlesex, Tidewarer, Pinclands, Southern Shores, and TESI; Non-Regulared- USA, USA-PA,
and White Marsh.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2008 COMPARED TO 2007

Years Ended December 31,
(Millions of Dollars)
2008 2007

Non- MNon-
Regulated  Regulated Taotal Regulated Regulated Toeal
Revenues 881.1 $9.9 $91.0 £77.1 $9.0 586.1
Operations and maintenance 41.2 ri 48.9 38.8 7.4 46.2
Depreciation 7.8 0.1 7.9 7.4 0.1 Tt
Other taxes 10.0 0.2 10.2 9.5 0.2 9.7
Operating income 22.1 1.9 24.0 21.4 ) 22.7
Other income (expense) 0.9 0.4 1.3 1.5 —_ 1f
Interest expense 7.0 0.1 7.1 6.6 = 6.6
Income raxes 5.0 1.0 6.0 5.2 0.6 5.8
Net income £11.0 £1.2 $12.2 £11.1 $0.7 £11.8

Operating revenues for the year rose $4.9 million, or 5.7% over the same period in 2007, Revenues in our Middlesex
system increased $4.2 million as a result of a 9.1% base rate increase implemented Ocrober 26, 2007, Middlesex
revenues decreased $1.1 million due 1o lower consumprion by our customers during 2008, Warter sales improved

50.8 million in our Delaware water systems. We recorded additional revenue of $1.2 million as a result of an additional
12% base rate increase thar was granted to Tidewarter February 28, 2007, and Distribution System Improvement
Charge (DSIC) rare increases of 1.62% and 2.94% thar went into effect January 1, 2008 and July 1, 2008, respectively.
DSIC is a PSC approved rate that allows water utilities to recover their investment in non-revenue producing capital
improvements to the water system in berween base rate increase requests. Fees charged for inital connection to our
Delaware Water system were $0.4 million lower in 2008 as new residential and commercial development has slowed
in our Delaware service territories, USA-PA’ fees for managing the Perth Amboy water and wastewater systems were
$0.5 million higher than the same period in 2007, due mostly to scheduled increases in the fixed fee component of
the contract. Revenues from our regulated wastewater operations in Delaware increased $0.2 million due o customer
growth. All other operations accounted for $0.3 million of additional revenues.
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While we anticipate continued organic customer and consumprion growth among our Delaware systems, such growth and
increased consumption cannor be guaranteed. The impact of the national economic recession has been to reduce the level
of activity in the new residential housing market in our Delaware service territories. In addition, our water systems are
highly dependent on the effects of weather, which may adversely impacr future consumprion despite customer growth.
Appreciable organic customer and consumption growth is less likely in our New Jersey systems due to the extent to which
our service territory is developed. The Company expects its 2009 Tidewater operating revenues to reflect the benefie of the
DSIC rate increase effective January 1, 2009 and interim rate increase expected 1 be go into effect in latre March 2009,
There can be no assurances that the PSC will accept, reject or amend the level of the interim rate increase request.

Operation and maintenance expenses increased $2.7 million, or 5.8%. Even though 2008 water production was lower
than 2007 in our Middlesex and Tidewarer systems, our expenses increased $0.3 million due o higher costs for warer,
clectric power and chemicals. Labor and benefits costs increased $1.3 million, which includes $0.7 million recognized
tor employee benefits due to marker flucruarions in the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. The costs to
operate our regulated wastewater facilities in Delaware increased $0.3 million due o acquisition of the Milton,
Delaware municipal wastewater system during 2007 and an inereased number of wastewater treatment facilities in
operatien in Delaware, Costs for service claims under our LineCareSM program were 30.1 million higher due in part
to a 9.4% increase in the number of subscribers in the program during 2008. Operating costs for USA-PA increased
50.3 million due o higher pass-through charges. All other expense categories increased $0.4 million.

Depreciation expense for 2008 increased by $0.4 million, or 5.1%, due 1o a higher level of utility plant in service.

Other taxes increased by $0.5 million generally reflecting additional taxes on higher taxable gross revenues, payroll
and real estate.

Orher income was $0.2 million lower than 2007, primarily due to one-time gains recorded in 2007 on owo
wransactions related to assets no longer used in our operations.

Interest expense increased by $0.4 million, or 6.6%, as a result of a higher level of average short-term debr outstanding
when compared to 2007.

Income rax expense based on our current year operating resulrs was $0.2 million higher than 2007 and reflects
increased revenues due to higher water rates in New Jersey and Delaware.

Net income increased ro $12.2 million from $11.8 million in the prior year, and basic carnings per share increased
from $0.88 o 50.90. Diluted earnings per share increased from $0.87 o $0.89.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Years Ended December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)
2007 2006

Mon- Mon-
Regulared  Regulared Toral Regulated  Regulated Toal
Revenues $77.1 $9.0 386.1 $71.9 $9.2  $81.1
Operations and maintenance 38.8 7.4 46.2 35.7 Fis 43.4
Depreciation 74 0.1 7.5 7.0 0.1 7-1
Other taxes 9.5 0.2 9.7 9.1 0.2 9.3
Operarting income 21.4 1.3 227 20.1 1.2 213
Other income (expense) 1.5 — 1.5 0.9 (0.1} 0.8
Interest expense 6.6 — 0.0 7.0 — 7.0
Income taxes 5.2 0.6 5.8 4.6 0.5 5.1
Net income $11.1 $0.7 $11.8 9.4 $0.6 $10.0




Middlesex Warer Company

Operating revenues for the year rose $5.0 million, or 6.2% over the same period in 2006. Revenues improved by
£3.7 million in our Tidewater System, of which $2.4 million was a result of a base rate increase that was granted

to Tidewater. The rate increase was implemented in two parts; a 15% interim rate increase in June 2006 and an
addirional 12% final increase on February 28, 2007. Customer growth and higher consumprtion coneribured $1.9
million of increased revenues. Our Tidewater System experienced record water production and consumption billed
due 1o extended favorable weather during the spring and summer. Fees charged to new customers for initial connection
to our Delaware warter systems were lower by $0.6 million as new residential and commercial development has slowed
in our Delaware service territories. Revenues in our Middlesex system increased by 50.7 million as a result of 2 9.1%
base rate increase implemented on Ocrober 26, 2007, Middlesex revenues also increased by $0.3 million due to
increased sales to our contract customers, TESI revenues increased by 50.3 million, as we connected new customers
to our existing and new wastewater systems in Delaware.

Operation and maintenance expenses increased 52.8 million, or 6.5%. Labor costs were $1.3 million higher due o
wage increases and increased headcount to meer the needs of the growing Delaware customer base, risk management,
training and safery. As expected, electric generation costs for our Middlesex system increased due to the renewal in late
2006 of our contract with the power purveyor. That factor accounted for mest of the $0.6 million in additonal power
costs. Pumping and water treatment costs increased a combined $0.2 million due to higher costs for chemicals and
disposal of residuals. Costs for water main breaks in our New Jersey system and transportation fuel were $0.2 million
higher than the same period in 2006 due o the number and size of the breaks and higher gasoline prices. The cost

to operate our TESI regulared wastewater facilities in Delaware increased by $0.2 million as we acquired the Milton,
Delaware wastewater system during the year. All other operating costs increased by $0.3 million.

Depreciation expense for 2007 increased by $0.4 million, or 5.6%, due to a higher level of utility plant in service.

Other taxes increased by $0.4 million generally reflecring addirional caxes on higher raxable gross revenues, payroll and
real estate.

Other income increased $0.7 million, primarily due to a gain of $0.2 million on the sale of non-utility real property in
New Jersey and a gain of $0.4 million on the sale of cerrain warer service rights in Delaware.

Interest expense decreased by $0.4 million, or 5.7%, as a resulr of a lower level of average shorr-term debr ourstanding
when compared to 2006,

Income tax expense based on our current year operating results was $0.9 million higher than 2006 and reflects the
increased revenues due to higher water rates in New Jersey and Delaware, the record customer usage in Delaware and
the sale of non-essential assets, This was partially offset by $0.2 million of solar tax credits recorded during 2007,

Net income increased ro $11.8 million from $10.0 million in the prior year, and basic earnings per share increased
from £0.83 ro $0.88. Diluted earnings per share increased from $0.82 to $0.87.

Qutlook

In addition to factors previously discussed under “Results of Operations in 2008 Compared to 2007,” our revenues are
expected to increase in 2009 from rate increases granted to our Pinelands companies in December 2008. Middlesex
has filed a petition with the BPU to implement a purchased water adjustment clause (PWAC) secking recovery of
51.0 million of additional costs associared with rate increases from two non-affiliated water purveyors for our purchases
of treated and untreated water. There can be no assurances that the BPU will grane the PWAC in whole or in part.

Revenues and earnings will also be influenced by weather. Changes in these factors, as well as increases in capiral
expenditures and operating costs are the primary factors thar determine the need for rare increase filings. We continue

to implement viable plans to streamline operations and reduce operating costs.

We expect our level of borrowing to increase during 2009 in order to finance a portion of our capiral expenditures
during the coming year (sce Liquidity and Capital Resources). However, current interest rates on short-term borrowings
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are significantly below the rates at which we borrowed during much of 2008, We believe those lower interest rares will
continue during 2009 and will result in lower interest expense,

The actual return on assets held in our retirement benefic plans during 2008 resulted in a decline in the amount
available to fund eurrent and future obligations. We expect this will result in higher benefits expenses and increased
cash contributions to the plans in 2009,

As a resule of ongoing delays in new residential home construction throughout the service territories we serve, there
may be an increase in the amount of PS&T that will not be currently recoverable in rates,

Owr strategy includes continued revenue growth through acquisitions, internal expansion, contract operations and
when necessary, rate relief, We will continue to pursue opportunities in both the regulated and non-regulated sectors
thar are financially sound, complement existing capabilities and increase sharcholder value.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows from operations are largely based on three factors: weather, adequate and timely rate increases, and customer
growth. The effect of those factors on net income is discussed in results of operations, For 2008, cash flows from
operating acrivities increased $0.3 million to $19.1 million, as compared to the prior year. This increase was primarily
atrributable to higher ner income and depreciation. The $19.1 million of net cash flow from operations enabled us

to fund approximately 67% of our utility plant expenditures for the period internally, with the remainder funded with
proceeds from equity issued under our Dividend Reinvestment Plan, long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings.

For 2007, cash flows from operating activities increased $2.7 million to $18.8 million, as compared to the prior year.
This increase was primarily areriburable to higher ner income and depreciation. The $18.8 million of ner cash flow
from operarions enabled us o fund approximarely 86% of our urility plant expendirures for the period internally, with
the remainder funded with proceeds from equiry issued under our Dividend Reinvestment Plan, long-term borrowings
and short-term borrowings.

Increases in certain operating costs will impact our liquidity and capital resources. As described in our results of
operations and outlook discussions, during 2008 we received rare relief for Tidewarer and Pinelands and have filed
for rate increases for Middlesex and Tidewarer. Wi continually monitor the need for timely rate filing to minimize
the lag between the tdme we experience increased operating and capital costs and the time we receive appropriate rate
relief. There is no certainty, however, that the BPU or PSC will approve any or all future requested increases.

Sowrces of Liquidity

Short-term Debt. The Company had established lines of credit aggregating $36.0 million as of December 31, 2008,
and increased the established amount to $50.0 million in February 2009, At December 31, 2008, the outstanding
borrowings under these credit lines was $25.9 million at a weighted average interest rate of 2.30%.

The weighted average daily amounts of borrowings outstanding under the Company’s eredit lines and the weighred
average interest rates on those amounts were $16.4 million and $2.6 million ar 3.69% and 6.36% for the years ended

Diecember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Long-term Debt. Subject to regulatory approval, the Company periodically finances capirtal projects under State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan programs in New Jersey and Delaware. These government programs provide financing

at interest rates that are typically below rates available in the broader financial markets, A portion of the borrowings
under the New Jersey SRF is interest-free. We participated in the Delaware and New Jersey SRF lean programs during
2008 and expect to participate in the 2009 New Jersey SRF program for up to $4.0 million.

During 2008, Middlesex closed on $3.5 million of first mortgage bonds through the New Jersey Environmental
Infrastructure Trust (NJEIT) under the New Jersey SRF loan program in order to finance our 2009 RENEW program.
The proceeds of these bonds, and any interest earned, are held by a trustee, and are classified as Restricted Cash on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet,
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Substantially all of the Urility Plant of the Company is subject to the lien of its morigage, which includes debr service
and capiral ratio covenants. The Company is in compliance with all of its mortgage covenants and restrictions.

Commeon Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with its Dividend
Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plan (the Plan). The Company raised $1.2 million through the issuance
of shares under the Plan during 2008, Periodically, the Company may issue additional equity to reduce short-term
indebredness and for other general corporate purposes. The last public offering of our common stock closed in
Movember 2006, The majority of the ner proceeds of approximartely $26.2 million from that common stock offering
af 1.5 million shares were used to repay all of the Company’s short-term borrowings outstanding at that time,

Capiral Expenditures and Commitments

Under our capital program for 2009, we plan to expend $10.0 million for additions and improvements for our
Delaware warer systems, which include the construction of several storage ranks and the crearion of new wells and
interconnections. We expect to spend approximately $1.0 million for construction of wastewater systems in Delaware.
We expect to spend $3.2 million to complete the implementation of a Company-wide information system and

$0.9 million for other information systems equipment and software. We expect to spend $3.5 million for our
REMNEW program, which is our program to clean and cement line unlined mains in the Middlesex System. There
remains a total of approximately 109 miles of unlined mains in the 730-mile Middlesex System. In 2008, three miles
of unlined mains were cleaned and cement lined. The capiral program also includes $12.4 million for scheduled
upgrades to our existing systems in New Jersey. The scheduled upgrades consist of $4.0 million for improvements to
existing plant, $5.8 million for mains, $0.9 million for service lines, $0.7 million for meters, $0.3 million for hydrants,
and $0.8 million for other infrastructure needs.

To pay for our capital program in 2009, we will utilize internally generated funds and funds available and held in trust
under existing NJEIT loans (currently, $4.5 million) and Delaware SRF loans {currently, $1.9 million). The SRF
programs provide low cost financing for projects that meet certain warter quality and system improvement benchmarks.
If necessary, we will also utilize short-term borrowings through $50.0 million of available lines of credit with several
financial insticutions. As of December 31, 2008, we had $25.9 million outstanding against the lines of credic.

Going forward into 2010 through 2011, we currently project that we may be required to expend between $65.0 million
and $91.2 million for capiral projects. The exact amount is dependent an customer growth, residential housing sales
and project scheduling, In particular, Middlesex had filed a prudence review application with the BPU for a proposed
major transmission pipeline designed to strengthen its existing transmission network and provide further system
reliability. Inirial estimates to construce the pipeline are $26.2 million. A sectlement amongst the parties in the
prudence review was approved by the BPU on Ocrober 23, 2008. As part of the settlement, it was agreed the pipeline
is needed but will not be constructed at this time, The parties further agreed that it would be effective utility
management and proper long-term planning for the Company to proceed with the procurement of easements along
the agreed-upon pipeline roure in anticipation of a need for the project as customer demand for warer increases in

the South River Basin portion of our customer base.

To the extent possible and because of favorable interest rates available ro regulated warer utilities, we expect to finance
portions of our capital expenditures under the SRF loan programs. We also expect to use internally generated funds
and proceeds from the sale of common stock through the Dividend Reinvestment and Common Steck Purchase Man,
It may also be necessary to sell shares of our Common Stock through a public offering.

Contractual Obligations

In the course of normal business activities, the Company enters into a variety of contractual obligations and
commercial commitments, Some of these items result in direct obligations on the Company'’s balance sheet while
others are commitments, some firm and some based on uncertainties, which are disclosed in the Company's
ather underlying consolidared financial statements.
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The rable below presents our known contracrual obligations for the periods specified as of December 31, 2008,

Payments Due by Period
(Millions of Dollars)

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term Debr $ 1360 $ 180 $ 68 § 70 $104.2
Motes Payable 259 259 — — ——
Interest on Long-term Debt 93.4 5.8 10.9 10.3 664
Purchased Water Contracts 41.9 4.9 7.8 4.9 24.3
Wastewater Operations 47.6 4.2 8.7 9.3 25.4
Employee Retirement Plans" 5.0 5.6 — — —
Total $ 3504 $ 644 § 342 § 315 5 2203

™ Amouns not decerminable after one pear,

Guarantees

USA-PA operates the City of Perth Amboy's (Perth Amboy) water and wastewater systems under a service contract
agreement through June 30, 2018, Under the agreement, USA-PA receives a fixed fee and a variable fee based on
increased system billing. Scheduled fixed fee payments were $8.0 million in 2008 and will increase over the term of
the contract to $10.2 million by the end of the conract,

In connection with the agreement, Perth Amboy, through the Middlesex County Improvement Authority, issued
approximarely $68.0 million in three series of bonds. Middlesex guaranteed one of those series of bonds, designared
the Series C Serial Bonds, in the principal amount of approximarely $26.3 million. Perth Amboy guaranteed the rwo
ather series of bonds, The Series C Serial Bonds have various maturity dates with the final maturity date on Seprember
1, 2015. As of December 31, 2008, approximately $21.4 million of the Series C Serial Bonds remained outstanding.

We are obligated o perform under the guarantee in the event notice is received from the Series C Serial Bonds trustee
of an impending debrt service deficiency. If Middlesex funds any debr service obligations as guarantor, there is a
provision in the agreement thart requires Perth Amboy to reimburse us. There are other provisions in the agreement
that we believe make it unlikely that we will be required to perform under the guarantee, such as scheduled annual
rate increases for the water and wastewater services as well as rate increases due to unforescen circumstances. In the
event revenues from customers could nor satisfy the reimbursement requirements, Perth Amboy has Ad Valorem
taxing powers, which could be used 1o raise the needed amount.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The application of accounting policies and standards often requires the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments.
Changes in these variables may lead o significantdy different financial statement results. Our critical accounting
policies are set forth below.

Regrlatory Acconnting
We maintain our books and records in accordance with accounting principles generally accepred in the United Stares

of America. Middlesex and certain of its subsidiaries, which account for 89% of Operating Revenues and 98% of
Tortal Assets, are subject to regulation in the states in which they operate. Those companies are required o maintain
their accounts in accordance with regulatory authorities’ rules and guidelines, which may differ from other authoritative
accounting pronouncements, In those instances, the Company follows the guidance provided in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting For
the Effects of Cerrain Types of Regulation” (SFAS 71).
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In accordance with SFAS No. 71, costs and obligations are deferred if it is probable thar these items will be recognized
for rate-making purposes in future rates. Accordingly, we have recorded costs and obligations, which will be amaortized
over various future periods. Any change in the assessment of the probability of rate-making treatment will require us to
change the accounting twearment of the deferred item. We have no reason to believe any of the deferred items thar are
recorded would be treated differently by the regulators in the future,

Revenues

Revenues from metered customers include amounts billed on a eyele basis and unbilled amounts estimared from
the last meter reading date to the end of the accounting period. The estimated unbilled amounts are determined by
utlizing factors which include historical consumprion usage and current climate conditions. Differences berween
estimated revenues and acrual billings are recorded in a subsequent period.

Revenues from unmetered customers are hilled ar a fixed tariff rare in advance ar the beginning of each service peried
and are recognized in revenue ratably over the service period.

Revenues from the Perth Amboy management contract are comprised of fixed and variable fees. Fixed fees, which have
been set for the life of the contract, are billed monthly and recorded as earned. Variable fees, which are based on
billings and other factors and are not significant, are recorded upon approval of the amount by Perth Amboy.

Pension Plan
We maintain a noncontributory defined benefir pension plan which covers substantially all employees with more than
1,000 hours of service and who were hired prior o March 31, 2007,

The discount rate utilized for determining future pension obligations has increased from 5.89% at December 31, 2006
to 6.39% ar December 31, 2007 and decreased to 6.17% ar December 31, 2008. Lowering the discount rate by 0.5%
would have increased the net periodic pension cost by 50.2 million in 2008. Lowering the expected long-term rate of
return on the pension plans by 0.5% (from 8.0% to 7.5%) would have increased the net periadic pension cost in 2008
by approximately $0.1 million.

The discount rate for determining future pension obligations is determined based on market rates for long-term,
high-quality corporare bonds ar our December 31 measurement dare. The expected long-term rate of return for
pension assets is determined based on historical returns and our asset allocation,

Furure pension expense will depend on future investment performance, changes in furure discount rates and various
other demographic factors related o the population participating in the pension plan.

Recent Accounting Standards
See Note 1({m) of the Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Markert Risk.

The Company is subject 1o the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business. Qur policy is to
manage interest rates through the use of fixed rate long-term debr and, to a lesser extent, short-term debt. The
Company’s interest rate risk related to existing fixed rate, long-term debt is not material due to the term of the
majority of our First Mortgage Bonds, which have final maturity dates ranging from 2009 to 2038. Ower the next
rwelve months, approximately $18.0 million of the current portion of 24 existing long-term debr instruments will
mature, Applying a hypothetical change in the rate of interest charged by 10% on those borrowings, would not have
a material effect on our earnings.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Middlesex Water Company (Middlesex or the Company) is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal contrel over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Acr Rule 13A-15(f) and
15d-15(F). Middlesex’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s
management and Board of Direcrors of adequare preparation and fair presentation of the published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitarions. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to the adequacy of financial statement
preparation and presentation. Middlesex's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, In making this asscssment, management used the eriteria set forth
by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework. Based on our assessment, we believe thar as of December 31, 2008, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is operating as designed and is effective based on those criteria.

Middlesexs independent registered public accounting firm has audited the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 as stated in their report which is included herein,

Dol 0. 8680 (] frar OCourar

Dennis W, Doll A. Bruce O'Connor
President and Vice President and
Chief Execntive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Iselin, New Jersey
March 13, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Direcrors and
Stockholders of Middlesex Water Company

We have audited Middlesex Water Company’s (the
Company) internal control ever financial reporting as
of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's
management is responsible for mainining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is w express
an opinion on the Company’s internal contral over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighe
Board (United States). Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all marerial
respects. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obraining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk thar a marerial weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed nisk. Our audic
also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepred accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures thart (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, aceurarely and fairly reflect the reansactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance thar transactions are recorded as
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necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepred accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and [3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or rimely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s

assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequare because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{Unired Stares), the consolidared balance sheers and
consolidated statements of capital stock and long-term
debr of the Company as of December 31, 2008 and
2007 and the relared consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2008. Our report dated March 13,
2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on these
consolidated financial starements.

Beard Miller Company LLP

Reading, Pennsylvania
March 13, 2009
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Middlesex Water Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets and consolidated statements of capital
stock and long-term debr of Middlesex Water Company
and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31,
2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for cach of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2008, The
Company’s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements, Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighe
Board (United States). Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial
staternents are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audir also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation, We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December
31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for cach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with
accounting principles generally aceepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Owversight Board
(Unired States), Middlesex Water Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integral Framework issued by the Commirtee af
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0), and our report dared March 13, 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion.

Beard Miller Company LLP

Reading, Pennsylvania
March 13, 2009

LLP
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{In thousands)
December 31,
ASSETS 2008 2007
UTILITY PLANT: Warer Production $107,517 5 098942
Transmission and Distribution 283,759 264,939
General 27,142 24,874
Construction Work in Progress 11,653 9,833
TOTAL 430,071 398,588
Less Accumulared Depreciation 70,544 64,736
UTILITY PLANT - NET 359,527 333,852
CURRENT ASSETS: Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,288 2,029
Accounts Receivable, net 9,510 8,227
Unbilled Revenues 4,822 4,609
Marerials and Supplies (ar average cost) 1,475 1,205
Prepayments 1,481 1,363
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 20,576 17.433
DEFERRED CHARGES Unamortized Debe Expense 2,903 2884
AND OTHER ASSETS: Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 7,187 5,283
Ru:gu|:tnr_\-' Assets 31,910 16,090
Operations Contracts Fees Receivable 3,708 4,184
Restricted Cash 7.049 6418
MNon-urility Assets - Nex 6,762 6,183
Other 378 348
TOTAL DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS 59,897 41,390
TOTAL ASSETS $440,000 5392675
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
CAPITALIZATION: Common Seock, No Par Value $107,726 S105,668
Retained Earnings 30,077 27441
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, net of rax 0 (]
TOTAL COMMON EQUITY 137,803 133,178
Preferred Srock 3,375 3,958
Long-teem Debe 118,217 131,615
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION 259,395 268,751
CURRENT Current Portion of Long-term Debe 17,985 2,723
LIABILITIES: Notes Payable 25,877 6,250
Accounts Pavable 5,689 6,477
Accrued Taxes 7,781 7611
Accrued Interest 2,053 1,916
Unearned Revenues and Advanced Service Fees 842 758
Other 1,243 1,274
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 61,470 27,009
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 4)
DEFERRED CREDITS Customer Advances for Construction 22,089 21,758
AND OTHER LIABILITIES: Accumulared Deferred Investment Tax Credins 1,382 1,461
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes 21,733 17,940
Employee Benefit Plans 25,540 13,333
Regularory Liability - Cost of Utility Plant Removal 6,197 5,720
Other 263 439
TOTAL DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 77,904 60,677
CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION 41,231 36,238
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES $440,000 8392675

Ser Notes o Consolidated Financial Statensenis,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

(For Thvonsands, Except per Share Amonnts) 2iE 2007 200
OPERATING REVENUES §91,038 286,114 581,061
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Op:rations 44,782 42,117 39,799
Maintenance 4,147 4,123 3,546
Depreciation 7922 7.539 7,060
Orther Taxes 10,168 9,664 9,338
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 67,019 63,443 59,743
OPERATING INCOME 24,019 22,671 21,318
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 667 537 632
Orther Income 206 1,153 160
Orther Expense (271) (163) (18)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME, NET 1,302 1,527 774

INTEREST CHARGES 7,057 6,619 7,012
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 18,264 17,579 15,080
INCOME TAXES 6,056 5,736 5,041
NET INCOME 12,208 11,843 10,039
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDEND REQUIREMENTS 218 248 248
EARNINGS APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK $11,990 $11,595 $ 979
Earnings per share of Common Stock:

Basic 5 090 5 (.88 $ 0.83

Diluted 5 0.89 § 087 5 0.82
Average Mumber of Commeon Shares Outstanding:

Basic 13,317 13,203 11,844

Diluted 13,615 13,534 12,175
Cash Dividends Paid per Common Share 5 0.703 £ 0.693 $ 0.683

See Noves to Congolidated Frnauneial Statenents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

(e thoseanele) 2008 2007 G
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met Income 512,208 511,843 510,039
Adjustments 1o Reconcile Net Income to
Ner Cash Provided by Operating Activiries:
Depreciarion and Amornization 8,530 8,176 7,761
Provision for Deferred Income Taxes and ITC 1,032 399 ga7
Equity Portion of AFUDC (348) (235) (259)
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance 576 (271) (133)
Gain on Disposal of Equiry Investments (86) — -
Gain on Sale of Real Estate — (267) o
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (BO7) (2,752) (463)
Unbilled Revenues (213) (596) (276}
Marerials & Supplies (270) 101 (46)
Prepayments (118) (134) (301}
Other Assers (351) e} (485)
Accounts Payable 147 986 (538)
Accrued Taxes 2006 941 197
Accrued Interest 137 36 11
Employee Benefit Plans (1,146) 239 (84)
Unearned Revenue & Advanced Service Fees 84 157 127
Other Liabilities (465) 224 (299)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 19,116 18,818 16,126
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Uiliy Plant Expendirures, Including AFUDC of $319 in 2008,
£282 in 2007, and £373 in 2006 (28,429) (21,9300 (30,734}
Restricred Cash (591) EEEl (1.036)
Proceeds from Real Estate Dispositions — 273 -
Preliminary Survey & Investigation Charges (1,907) (1,847) (1.661)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES (30,927) {23,060) {33,431)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
ercmptinn of Long-term Debt (2,787) (2,501) (1,915)
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-term Delbt 4,652 3,632 3,016
MNet Short-term Bank Hurmwings 19,627 6,250 (4,000)
Defereed Debr Issuance Expenses (158) (500 (28)
Cammon Stock Issuance Expense — (15) (238)
Restricted Cash (40) (12) (32)
Mroceeds from Dsuance of Common Stock 1,475 1,420 28,088
Payment of Commaon Dividends (9.353) 9.141) (8,190)
Payment of Preferred Dividends (218) (248) (248)
Construction Advances and Contributions-Met (128) 1,110 1,694
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 13,070 445 20,147
NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,259 (3,797) 2,842
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 2,029 5.826 2,984
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 5 3,288 § 2,029 5 5826
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITY:
U[ility Plant received as Construction Advances and Contributions 5 5,452 5 8960 5 3,543
Transfer of Equity Investment to Empluy\cr Retirement Benefit Plans s 132 5 —_— 5 —
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:
Cash Paid During the Year for:
Interest 5 06,8064 5 6,542 5 6,937
Interest Capitalized s (319 $ (282) $ (373)
Income Taxes $ 5,205 % 4,534 3 4,352

See Notes to Consolicated Finaneial Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL STOCK AND LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31,
{in theusands) 2008 2007
Common Stock, No Par Value
Shares Authorized - 40,000
Shares Owstanding - 2008 - 13,404 $107,726 5105,668
2007 - 13,246
Rerained Earnings 30,077 27.441
Accumulated Ocher Comprehensive Income, net of rax — 69
TOTAL COMMON EQUITY 137,803 133,178
Cumulative Preference Stock, No Par Value:
Shares Authorized - 100
Shares Oustanding - None
Cl..l.!'nular't\'t‘ Prcﬁ:rn:d Stﬂﬁk. Nu' I‘RI’ V:J uey
Shares Authorized - 2008 - 134; 2007 - 139
Shares Outstanding - 2008 - 32; 2007 - 37
Convertible:
Shares Questanding, $7.00 Series - 14 1,457 1,457
Shares Ouestanding, $8.00 Series - 2008 - 7; 2007 - 12 816 1,399
Nonredeemable:
Shares Qurstanding, $7.00 Series - 1 102 102
Shares Questanding, $4.75 Series - 10 1,000 1.000
TOTAL PREFERRED STOCK 3,375 3.958
Long-term Debr:
8.05%, Amortizing Secured Note, due December 20, 2021 2,695 2,800
6.25%, Amortizing Secured Note, due May 22, 2028 8,155 8,575
6.44%, Amortizing Secured Note, due August 25, 2030 6,067 6,347
6.46%, Amortizing Secured Note, due Seprember 19, 2031 6,347 6,627
4,22%, Stare Revolving Trust Note, due December 31, 2022 657 691
3.30% to 3,60%, State Revolving Trust Note, due May 1, 2025 3,689 3,168
3.49%, Stare Revolving Trust Note, due January 25, 2027 675 603
4.03%, Stare Revolving Trust Note, due December 1, 2026 939 974
4.00% to 5.00%, State Revolving Trust Bond, due Seprember 1, 2021 660 695
0.00%, State Revolving Fund Bond, due September 1, 2021 500 538
3.64% Stre Revolving Trust Mote, due July 1, 2028 389 —_
3.64% State Revolving Trust Note, due January 1, 2028 140 —
First Morigage Bonds:
5.20%, Series 5, due October 1, 2022 12,000 12,000
5.25%, Series T, due Ocrober 1, 2023 6,500 6,500
6.40%, Series U, due February 1, 2009 15,000 15,000
5.25%, Series V. due February 1, 2029 10,000 10,000
5.35%, Series W, due February 1, 2038 23,000 23,000
0.00%, Series X, due Seprember 1, 2018 538 591
4.25% to 4.63%, Series Y, due September 1, 2018 710 765
0.00%, Series Z, due September 1, 2019 1,230 1,342
5.25% to 5.75%, Series AA, due September 1, 2019 1,675 1,785
0.00%, Series BB, due Seprember 1, 2021 1,566 1,685
4.00% to 5.00%, Series CC, due Sq.:ptc:mb::r 1, 2021 1,895 1,995
5.10%, Series DD, due January 1, 2032 6,000 6,000
0.00%, Series EE, due Seprember 1, 2024 6,693 7112
3.00% to 5.50%, Series FF, due Seprember 1, 2024 8,025 8,385
0.00%, Series GG, due August 1, 2026 1,619 1,710
4.00% to 5.00%, Series HH, due August 1, 2026 1,880 1,950
0.00%, Serics 11, due August 1, 2027 1,708 1,750
3.40% to 5.00%, Series J], due August 1, 2027 1,750 1,750
0.00%, Series KK, due August 1, 2028 1,750 —_—
5.00% ro 5.50%, Series LL, due August 1, 2028 1,750 _—
SUBTOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 136,202 134,338
Less: Current Portion of Long-term Debt (17,985) (2,723)
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 118,217 $131,615

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Accumulated
Common Common Other

Stock Stock Retained Comprehensive
(for thonsands) Shares Amount Eamings [ncome (Loss) Total
Balance at January 1, 2006 11,584 § 76,161 523,638 £(207) 3 99.592
Mer Income 10,039 10,039
Minimum Pension Liabiliry,

MNet of $135 Income Tax 262 262
Change in Value of Equity Investments,

Met of 520 Income Tax 39 39

Comprehensive Income 10,340
Dividend Reinvestment &

Common Stock Purchase Plan Fii 1,321 1,321
Restricted Stock Award - Net 19 275 275
Preferred Stock Conversion 1,495 26,491 26,491
Cash Dividends on Common Stock (8,190) (8,190)
Cash Dividends on Preferred Stock (248) (248)
Commeon Stock Expense (238) (238)
Balance at December 31, 2006 13,168 104,248 25,001 94 129,343
Met Income 11,843 11,843
Change in Value of Equity Investments,

MNet of $13 Income Tax (25) (25)

Comprehensive Income 11,818
Dividend Reinvestment &

Common Stock Purchase Plan Gl 1,147 1,147
Restricted Stock Award - Net 17 273 273
Cash Dividends on Common Stock (9,141) {9, 141)
Cash Dividends on Preferred Stock (248) (248)
Common Stock Expenses (15) (13)
Other 1 1
Balance at December 31, 2007 13,246 105,668 27 441 69 133,178
Ner Income 12,208 12,208
Change in Value of Equity Investments,

Net of $36 Income Tax (69) (69)

Comprehensive Income 12,139
Dividend Reinvestment &

Common Stock Purchase Plan 67 1,187 1,187
Conversion of $8 Convertible Preferred Stock 69 583 583
Restricted Stock Award - Net 22 288 288
Cash Dividends on Common Stock (9,353) (9,353)
Cash Dividends on Preferred Stock (218} (218)
Other (1) (1)
Balance at December 31, 2008 13,404 $107,726 £30,077 5 — $137,803

Ser Notes vo Consolidated Financial Statensenis,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of
Signiﬁca.nt Accounting Policies

(a) Organizartion - Middlesex Water Company
{Middlesex) is the parent company and sole shareholder
of Tidewarer Utilities, Inc. (Tidewater), Tidewater
Environmental Services, Inc. (TESI), Pinelands Warer
Company (Pinelands Water) and Pinelands Wastewater
Company (Pinclands Wastewater) (collectively,
Pinelands), Utility Service Affiliates, Inc. (USA) and
Utility Service Affiliates (Perth Amboy) Inc. (USA-
PA). Southern Shores Water Company, LLC (Southern
Shores) and White Marsh Environmental Systems, Inc.
{(Whirte Marsh), are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Tidewater. The financial statements for Middlesex

and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company)

are reported on a consolidated basis. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have

been diminated.

Middlesex Water Company has operated as a water
utility in New Jersey since 1897, and in Delaware,
through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Tidewarer,
since 1992, We are in the business of collecting,
wreating, distributing and selling warer for domestic,
commercial, municipal, industrial and fire protection
purposes. We also operate a New Jersey municipal
water and wastewater system under contract and
provide wastewater services in New Jersey and
Deelaware through our subsidiaries. We are regulated
as to rates charged to customers for water and
wastewater services in New Jersey and Delaware, as
to the quality of services we provide and as to certain
other maters. Only our USA, USA-PA and White

Marsh subsidiaries are not regulared uriliries.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior
year financial statements to conform with current
period presentation.

(b) System of Accounts - Middlesex, Pinelands Warer
and Pinelands Wastewater maintain their accounts

in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts
prescribed by the Board of Public Utilities of the

State of New Jersey (BPU). Tidewater, TEST and
Southern Shores maintain their accounts in accordance
with the Public Service Commission of Delaware
(PSC) requirements,

() Utility Plant is stated ar original cost as defined
for regulatory purposes, Property accounts are charged

with the cost of betterments and major replacements
of praperty. Cost includes direct material, labor and
indirect charges for pension benefits and payroll

taxes. The cost of labor, marerials, supervision and
other expenses incurred in making repairs and

minor replacements and in maincaining the properries
is charged to the appropriate expense accounts. At
December 31, 2008, there was no event or change

in circumstance that would indicate that the carrying
amount of any long-lived asset was not recoverable.

(d) Depreciation is computed by each regulared
member of the Company utilizing a rate approved by
the applicable regulatory authority. The Accumulared
Provision for Depreciation is charged with the cost

of property retired, less salvage. The following table
sets forth the range of depreciation rates for the major
utility plant categories used to calculate depreciation
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006. These rates have been approved by either the
BPU or PSC:

Source of Supply 1.15% - 3.44%
Pumping 2.87% - 5.04%
Warer Treatment 2.71% - 7.64%
General Plant 2.08% - 17.84%

Transmission and Distribution (T&D):

T&D - Mains 1.10% - 3.13%
T&D - Services 2.12% - 2.81%
T&D — Other 1.61% - 4.63%

MNon-regulared fixed assers consist primarily of

an office building, furnirture and fixtures, and
transportation equipment. These assets are recorded
ar eriginal cost and depreciation is calculaved

based on the estimared useful lives, ranging from

3 to 40 years,

() Customers’ Advances for Construction — Warer
utility plant andfor cash advances are contributed to
the Company by customers, real estate developers

and builders in order to extend water service to their
properties. These contributions are recorded as
Customers’ Advances for Construcrion. Refunds on
these advances are made by the Company in accordance
with agreements with the contributing party and are
based on cither additional operating revenues related
to the utility plant or as new customers are connecred
to and take service from the urility plant. Afrer all
refunds are made, any remaining balance is transferred
to Contributions in Aid of Construction.
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Contributions in Aid of Construction = Conrributions
in Aid of Construction include direct non-refundable
contributions of water utility plant and/or cash and
the portion of Customers’ Advances for Construction
that become non-refundable.

Advances and Contributions are not depreciated in
accordance with BPU and PSC requirements. In
addition, these amounts reduce the investment base
for purposes of setting rates.

(f) Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
(AFUDC) — Middlesex and irs regulared subsidiaries
capitalize AFUDC, which represents the cost of
financing projects during construction. AFUDC is
added to the construcrion costs of individual projects
exeeeding specific cost and construction period
thresholds established for cach company and then
depreciared along with the rest of the uriliry plant’s
costs over its estimated useful life, For the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 approximately
$0.7 million, $0.5 million and $0.6 million,
respectively of AFUDC was added 1o the cost of
construction projects, AFUDC is calculated using
each company’s weighted cost of debr and equiry as
approved in their most recent respective regulatory
rate order. The average AFUDC rate for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 for
Middlesex and Tidewarer were 7.55% and

8.07%, respectively.

{g) Accounts Receivable — We record bad debr expense
based on historical write-offs. The allowance for
doubtful accounts was $0.2 million at December 31,
2008, 50.3 million at December 31, 2007, and 50.3
million at December 31, 2006. The corresponding
expense for the year ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006 was 50.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.3
million, respectively.

(h) Revenues — General metered customer’s bills for
regulated water service are typically comprised of two
components; a fixed service charge and a yolumetric or
consumprion charge. Revenues from general merered
service water customers, except Tidewater, include
amounts billed in arrears on a cycle basis and unbilled
amounts estimated from the last meter reading date
to the end of the accounting period. The estimated
unbilled amounts are determined by utilizing facrors
which include historical consumption usage and
current climate conditions, Actual billings may differ
from our estimares. Revenues are adjusted in the
peried that the difference is identified. Tidewarer
customers are billed in advance for their fixed service
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charge and these revenues are recognized as the service
is provided to the customer.

Southern Shores is an unmetered system. Customers
are billed a fixed service charge in advance ar the
beginning of each month and revenues are recognized
as camned. Revenues from the City of Perth Amboy
management contract are comprised of fixed and
variable fees. Fixed fees, which have been set for the
life of the contract, are billed monthly and recorded
as eamed. Variable fees, which are nor significant, are
recorded upon approval of the amount by the Ciry
of Perth Ambay.

USA bills customers on a quarterly or annual basis
for its LineCare™ service line maintenance program.
Quarterly amounts billed are recognized as earned.
Amounts that are billed on an annual basis are
deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over

the year.

(i) Deferred Charges and Other Assets — Unamortized
Debr Expense is amortized over the lives of the relared
issues, Restricted Cash represents proceeds from loans
entered into through srare financing programs and is
held in rrusts. The proceeds are restricred for specific
capital expenditures and debe service requirements,

(j) Income Taxes — Middlesex files a consolidated
federal income tax return for the Company and
income taxes are allocated based on the separate rerurn
method. Investment tax credits have been deferred
and are amortized over the estimated useful life of

the related properry.

(k) Statements of Cash Flows — For purposes of
reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly
liquid investments with original marurity dares of
three months or less 1o be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents represent bank balances and money
market funds with investments maruring in less

than 90 days.

(1) Use of Estimates — Conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management 1o make estimares and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

{m) Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In
December 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued FASE Staff Position (FSP)

FAS 132(R}-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about
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Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets™. This FSI* amends
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
132(R), “"Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits”, to provide guidance
on an employer’s disclosures about plan assets of a
defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan,
The disclosures abour plan assets required by this
FSI* shall be provided for fiscal vears ending afrer
Diecember 15, 2009, The Company is currently
reviewing the effect this new proncuncement will have
on its consolidated financial statements.

In Ocrober 2008, the FASB issued FSP* FAS No. 157-
3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset
When The Market for That Asset Is Not Active” (FSP
157-3), 1o clarfy the application of the provisions of
SFAS 157 in an inactive market and how an entity
would determine fair value in an inactive marker, FSP
157-3 was effective immediately. The application of
the provisions of FSP 157-3 did not marerially affect
the Company’s financial starements.,

In September 2006, the Financial FASB issued SFAS
157, Fair Value Measurements, which establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. In
February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 157-2,
“Effective Date of FASB Statement No, 157" (FSP
157-2), which deferred the effective dare of SFAS 157
to fiscal years beginning afrer November 15, 2008

for nonfinancial assers and nonfinancial liabilities.
Adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and
financial liabilities did not have a marterial impact on
the Company’s financial statements. The Company
does nor anticipate that adoption of FSP 157-2 will
have a marerial impact on its financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
(ESP) EITF 03-6-1, "Derermining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Participating Securities.” This FSP
clarifies thar all outstanding unvested share-based
payment awards that contain rights to nonforfeitable
dividends participate in undistributed carnings with
commuon shareholders. Awards of this nature are
considered participating securities and the two-class
methoed of computing basic and dilured earnings

per share must be applied. This FSE, which is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008
will not have an impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 141 (R) “Business Combinations™ was
issued in December of 2007, This Statement establishes
principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a
business recognizes and measures in its financial
statements the identifiable assers acquired, the liabiliries
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquired business entity. The Statement also provides
guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill
acquired in the business combination and determines
what infermation to disclose to enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial
effects of the business combination. The guidance will
become effective as of the beginning of a company’s
fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008, This
new pronouncement will impact the Company’s
accounting for business combinations completed
beginning January 1, 2009,

In February 2007, the FASE issued FSI* FAS 158-1,
“Conforming Amendments to the Hlustrations in
FASE Statements No. 87, No. 88, and No 106 and o
the Related Staff Implementation Guides.” This FSP
makes conforming amendments to other FASE statements
and staff implementation guides and provides technical
corrections to SFAS Mo, 158, "Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Ocher Postretirement
Plans.” The conforming amendments in this FSP

did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

In May 2007, the FASB issued FSP* FIN 48-1
“Definition of Serdement in FASB Interpretation No.
48" (FSP FIN 48-1). FSP FIN 48-1 provides guidance
on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively
sertled for the purpose of recognizing previously
unrecognized tax benefits. FSP FIN 48-1 is effective
retroactively to January 1, 2007, The implementation
of this standard did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

(n) Other Comprehensive Income — Total comprehensive
income includes changes in equiry thar are excluded
from the consolidared statements of income and are
recorded into a separate section of capitalization on

the consolidated balance sheets.

(2} Regulatory Accounting — We maintain our books
and records in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America,
Middlesex and certain of its subsidiaries, which
account for 90% of Operating Revenues and 98% of
Toral Assets, are subject to regulation in the state in
which they operate. Those companies are required o
muaintain their accounts in accordance with regularory
authorities’ rules and guidelines, which may differ
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from other authoritative accounting pronouncements.
In those instances, the Company follows the guidance
provided in SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects
of Certain Types of Regulation.”

{p) Pension Plan - We maintain a noncontriburory
defined benefit pension plan which covers substantially
all employees with more than 1,000 hours of service,
and who were hired as of March 31, 2007, The
discount rate utilized for determining pension costs
increased from 5.52% for the year ended December
31, 2006 to 5.89% for the year ended December 31,
2007 and increased to 6.59% for the year ended
December 31, 2008, Furure acrual pension expense
will depend on furure investment performance,
changes in future discount rates and various other
factors related to the population participating in

the pension plans.

Note 2 - Rate and Regulatory Matters

Effective December 18, 2008, Pinelands Warter and
Pinclands Wastewarer implemented New Jersey Board
of Public Utilities (BPU) approved base rate increases
of 5.53% and 18.30%, respectively. These increases
represent a total base rate increase of approximarely
$0.2 million for Pinelands to oftset increased costs
associated with the operation and maintenance of
their systems.

Effective Ocrober 26, 2007, Middlesex received
approval from the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities
(BPU) for a 9.1%, or $5.0 million increase in its base
water rates. The increase was predicated on a rate base
of $164.4 million and an authorized return on equity
af 10.0%, Middlesex had originally filed for an $8.9
million or 16.5% base rate increase with the BPU

on April 18, 2007. The rate increase is intended 1o
recover increased costs of operations, maintenance,
labor and bencfits, purchased power, purchased

water and raxes, as well as capital investment of
approximately $23.0 million since June 2005.

On April 28, 2006, Tidewater filed for a $5.5 million,
or 38.6%, base rate increase with the Delaware Public
Service Commission (PSC). The request is intended 1o
recover increased costs of operations, maintenance and
taxes, as well as capital investment of approximately
$23.8 million since rates were last established in
March 2005. Since June 27, 2006, Tidewater has been
billing and recognizing additienal revenues through a
15% interim rate increase subject to refund as allowed
under PSC regulations. A sertlement was reached
amongst the parties which concluded thar a 26.9%
overall increase in base rates would be implemented.
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The PSC approved the secddement and the remaining
11.9% increase was pur into effect on February 28, 2007,

In accordance with the tariff established for Southern
Shores, an annual rare increase of 3% was implemented
on January 1, 2009, Under the terms of a contract
with Southern Shores Homeowners Association, the
increase cannot exceed the lesser of the regional
Consumer Price Index or 3%.

We have recorded certain costs as regulatory assets
because we expect full recovery of, or are currently
recovering, these costs in the rates we charge cus-
tomers. These deferred costs have been excluded from
rate base and, therefore, we are not earning a return on
the unamortized balances, These items are detailed as
tollows:

December 31,
(Thousands of Dollars)
Remaining
Recovery
Regulatory Assets 2008 2007 Periods
Postretirement
Benefits $20,679  $7,279 Various
Income Taxes 10,905 8,222 Various

Tank Painting 189 225 3-7 years
Rate Cases
and Other 137 364  Up to 2 years

Toral $31,910 516,090

Postretirement benefits include pension and other
postretirement benefits that have been recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet upon adoption of
SFAS 158. These amounts represent obligations in
excess of current funding, which the Company
believes will be fully recovered in rates set by the
regulatory authorities.

The recovery period for income taxes is dependent
upon when the temporary differences between the
tax and book treatment of various items reverse.

The Company uses composite depreciation rates for its
regulated utility assers, which is currently an acceprable
method under generally accepred accounting principles
and is widely used in the utliy indusery. Historically,
under the compaosite depreciation method, the anticipared
costs of removing assets upon retirement are provided
tor over the life of those assets as a component of
depreciation expense. The Company recovers cerrain
asset retirement costs through rates charged to
customers as an approved component of depreciation
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expense. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the
Company has approximately $6.2 million and
5.7 million, respectively, of expected costs of
removal recovered currently in rates in excess of
actual costs incurred. These amounts are recorded
as regulatory liabilities.

The Company is recovering in current rates
acquisition premiums totaling $0.8 million over the
remaining lives of the underlying Unility Plant.
These deferred costs have been included in rate base
as utility plant and a return is being earned on the
unamorrized balances during the recovery periods.

Note 3 - Income Taxes

Income tax expense differs from the amount compured
by applying the statutory rate on book income subject
to tax for the following reasons:

Years Ended December 31,
(Thousands of Dollars)
2008 2007 2006

Income Tax at
Statutory Rate

Tax Effect of:
Utility Plant Relared (725) (593) (338)

State Income Taxes —

$6,253 §6,021 $5,155

MNet 309 350 257
Employee Benefits 202 (49)  (48)
Other 17 a 15

Total Income
Tax Expense 56,056 §5.736 §5,041

Income tax expense is comprised of the following:

Years Ended December 31,
(Thousands af Dollars)
2008 2007 2006

Current:

Federal 54,651 54,894 53,846
State 392 413 298
Deferred:

Federal 1,018 63d 884
State 74 117 92
Investment Tax

Credits (790 (322) (79)
Total Income

Tax Expense 86,056 35,736 55,041

The statutory review period for income tax returns for
the years prior to 2007 has been closed. An examination
by the Internal Revenue Service of the Federal income
tax rerurns for 2005 and 2006 was completed during
2008, The examination resulted in a net refund,
including interest of approximarely $0.1 million, The
tax refund was recorded to the appropriate current and
deferred rax accounts and the interest was reported as
other income, In the event that there are interest and
penalties associated with income tax adjustments in
furure examinarions, these amounts will be reported
under interest expense and other expense, respectively.
There are ne unrecognized rax benefits resulting from
prior period tax positions.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of
temporary differences berween the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. The components
of the ner deferred tax liability are as follows:

December 31,
(Thousands of Dollars)

2008 2007

Utility Plant Related $206,224 524,892

Customer Advances (4,036) (4,117)

Employee Benefits (65)  (2,544)

Other (390) (291)
Total Deferred

Tax Liability §21,733  $17.940

Note 4 - Commitments and
Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees - USA-PA operates the City of Perth
Amboy’s (Perth Amboy) warter and wastewarer systems
under a service contract agreement through June 30,
2018. Under the agreement, USA-PA receives a fixed
fee and a variable fee based on increased system billing,
Scheduled fixed fee payments for 2008, 2007 and
2006 were $8.0 million, 7.8 million and $7.6
million, respectively. The fixed fees will increase aver
the term of the contract to $10.2 million.

In connection with the agreement, Perth Ambaoy,
through the Middlesex County Improvement
Authority, issued approximarely S68.0 million in three
series of bonds, Middlesex guaranteed one of those
series of bonds, designared the Series C Serial Bonds,
in the principal amount of approximarely $26.3 million.
Perth Amboy guaranteed the two other series of bonds,

The Series C Serial Bonds have various marurity dares
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with the final marurity date on Seprember 1, 2015. As
of December 31, 2008, approximately $21.4 million
of the Series C Serial Bonds remained outstanding.

We are obligated to perform under the guarantee in
the event notice is received from the Series C Serial
Bonds trustee of an impending debr service deficiency.
If Middlesex funds any debr service obligations as
guarantor, there is a provision in the agreement that
requires Perth Amboy to reimburse us. There are
ather provisions in the agreement that we believe
make it unlikely that we will be required to perform
under the guarantee, such as scheduled annual rate
increases for water and wastewater services as well as
rate inereases due to unforeseen circumstances, In the
event revenues from customers could not satisfy the
reimbursement requirements, Perth Amboy has Ad
Valorem taxing powers, which could be used 1o

raise the needed amount.

Water Supply - Middlesex has an agreement with the
MNew Jersey Water Supply Authority (N]WSA) for the
purchase of untreated warter through November 30,
2023, which provides for an average purchase of 27
million gallons a day (mgd). Pricing is set annually by
the NJWSA through a public rate making process. The
agreement has provisions for additional pricing in the
event Middlesex overdrafts or exceeds certain monchly
and annual thresholds.

Middlesex also has an agreement with a non-affiliared
regulated warter utility for the purchase of treared
water. This agreement, which expires February 27,
2011, provides for the minimum purchase of 3 mgd of
treated water with provisions for additional purchases.

Purchased water costs are shown below:

Years Ended December 31,
(Millfons of Dollars)

Purchased Water 2008 2007 2006
Untreated £2.4 524 $2.3
Treated 2.1 2.1 1.9
Total Costs $4.5 54.5 $4.2

Construction —The Company may spend up to $33.0
million in 2009, $47.6 million in 2010 and $43.6
million in 2011 on irs construction program. The
development of these estimates is based in part upon
projected housing development and sales in Delaware.
There is no assurance thar the projected housing
development will accur,
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Litigation — The Company is a defendant in lawsuits
in the normal course of business. We believe the
resolution of pending claims and legal proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Change in Control Agreements — The Company has
Change in Control Agreements with certain of its
officers thar provide compensation and benefits in the
event of termination of employment in connection
with a change in conrrol of the Company.

Note 5 — Short-term Borrowings
Information regarding the Company’s short-term

borrowings for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007 is summarized below:

(Millions of Dollars)
2008 2007
Established Lines at
Year-End $36.0 540.0
Maximum Amount
Oul.\it:indirls 25.9 6.6
Average Ourstanding 16.4 2.6
MNotes Payable at Year-End 25.9 6.3
Weighted Average
Interest Rate 3.69%  6.36%
Weighted Average Interest
Rare ar Year-End 2.30%  5.79%

The marurity dartes for the $25.9 million borrowings
owmstanding as of December 31, 2008 are: $16.5 million
on several dates in January 2009, $3.5 million on
February 9, 2009 and $5.9 million on several dartes in
March, 2009. The weighted average interest rate for
those loans is 2.30%

Interest rates for short-rerm borrowings are below
the prime rate with no requirement for compensating
balances.

Note 6 - Capitalization

All the transactions discussed below relared wo the
issuance of securities were approved by either the

BPU or PSC, except where otherwise noted.

Common Stock

In June 2007, the number of shares authorized under
the Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock
Purchase Plan (DRP) increased from 1,700,000 shares
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o 2,300,000 shares. The cumulative number of shares
issued under the DRP ar December 31, 2008, is
1,684,411, The Company also has shares authorized
and ourstanding under a resericted stock plan, which
is deseribed in Note 7 — Employee Benefit Plans.

In November 2006, the Company sold and issued
1,495,000 shares of its common stock in a public
offering that was priced ac $18,46. The majority of the
net proceeds of approximartely $26.2 million were used
to repay all of the Company’s short-term borrowings
outstanding at that time. Remaining proceeds from
the public offering were used to fund a portion of the
2007 capiral program.

In the event dividends on the preferred stock are in
arrears, no dividends may be declared or paid on the
commeon stock of the Company. At December 31,
2008, no preferred stock dividends were in arrears.

Preferred Stock

If four or more quarterly dividends are in arrears, the
preferred shareholders, as a class, are entitled o elect
two members to the Board of Directors in addition to
Direcrors elecred by holders of the common stock.

Ar December 31, 2008 and 2007, 31,898 and 36,898
shares of preferred stock presently authorized were
outstanding and there were no dividends in arrears.

The conversion feature of the no par $7.00 Series
Cumularive and Convertible Preferred Stock allows the
security holders to exchange one convertible preferred
share for twelve shares of the Company’s common
stock. In addition, the Company may redeem up to
10% of the outstanding convertible stock in any
calendar year at a price equal to the fair market value
of twelve shares of the Company’s common stock

for each share of convertible stock redeemed.

The conversion feature of the no par $8.00 Serics
Cumulative and Convertible Preferred Stock allows the
security holders to exchange one convertible preferred
share for 13.714 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The prefersed shares are convertible into
commuon stock ar the election of the security holder

or Middlesex. During 2008, 5,000 shares of the no

par $8.00 Series Cumulative and Convertible Preferred

Stock were converted into 68,570 of common stock.

Lang-tern Debr
In November 2008, Middlesex issued $3.5 million
of first morrgage bonds through the New Jersey

Environmental Infrastructure Trust under the New

Jersey Stare Revolving Fund (SRF) program. The
Company closed on the first morigage bonds designared
as Series KK and LL on November 8, 2008,

In December 2007, Tidewater closed on a loan
with the Delaware SRF for two specific projects and
borrowed $0.5 million in 2008. The interest rate is
3.64% with a final maturicy of July 1, 2028,

In November 2007, Middlesex issued 33.5 million
of first mortgage bonds through the New Jersey
Environmental Infrastructure Trust under the

New Jersey SRF program. The Company closed on
the first mortgage bonds designated as Series 11 and
JI on November 8, 2007,

First Morrgage Bonds Series § through W and Series
DD are term bonds with single maturity dates. With
the exception of $15.0 million for repayment for the
First Mortgage Bond Series U which marured on
February 2, 2009, principal repayments for the First
Mortgage Bonds extend beyond 2012, The aggregate
annual principal repayment obligations for all other
long-term debrt are shown below:

(Millions of Dollars)
Yeear Annual Maturities
2009 §3.0
2010 3.4
2011 $3.4
2012 $3.5
2013 $3.5

The weighted average interest rate on all long-term
debr ar December 31, 2008 and 2007 was 5.15% and
5.20%, respectively. Except for the Amortizing Secured
Notes and Series U First Morigage Bonds, all of the
Company’s outstanding debrt has been issued through
the New Jersey Economic Development Authoriry
($57.5 million), the New Jersey Environmental
Infrastructure Trust program ($34.0 million) and

the Delaware SRF program (56.5 million).

Restricted cash includes proceeds from the Series Y,
AA, BB, CC, EE, FE GG, HH, 11, JJ, KK and LL
First Mortgage Bonds and State Revolving Trust Bonds
issuances, These funds are held in trusts and restricted
tor specific capital expenditures and debr service
requirements. Series 11 and J] proceeds can only be
used for the 2008 main cleaning and cement lining
program. Series KK and LL proceeds can only be used
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for the 2009 main cleaning and cement lining
program. All other bond issuance balances in restricted
cash are for debt service requirements.

Substantially all of the Utilicy Plant of the Company

is subject to the lien of its mortgage, which includes
debr service and capital ratio covenants. The Company
is in compliance with all of its morrgage covenants
and restrictions,

Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic
and diluted carnings per share (EPS) for the three years
ended December 31, 2008, Basic EPS is compured on
the basis of the weighted average number of shares
outstanding. Diluted EPS assumes the conversion of
both the Convertible Preferred Stock $7.00 Series and
$8.00 Series.

(In Thousands, Except per Share Amounis)

2008 2007 2006
Basic: Income Shares  Income Shares Income Shares
MNet Income $12,208 13,317 511,843 13,203 510,039 11,844
Preferred Dividend (218) (248) (248)
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock $11,990 13,317 $11,595 13,203 § 9,791 11,844
Basic EPS 5 090 5 0.88 5 0.83
[iluted:

Earnings Applicable to Common Stock
$7.00 Series Dividend
$8.00 Series Dividend

£11,990 13,317 $11,595 13,203 § 9,791 11,844

97 167 97 167 97 167
66 131 96 164 96 164

Adjusted Earnings Applicable to Common Stock
Diluted EPS

$12,153 13,615 511,788 13,534 § 9,984 12,175
5 0.89 5 0.87 5 082

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following metheds and assumprions were used by
the Company in estimating its fair value disclosure for
financial instruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value. The carrying amounts refleceed

in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash
equivalents, markerable securities, and rrade receivables

and payables approximate their respective fair values
due to the short-term marturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the Company’s long-term debr
relating to first morrgage bonds is based on quoted
market prices for similar issues. The carrying amount
and fair marker value of the Company’s bonds were
as follows:

At December 31,
(Thowsands af Dollars)
2008 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
First Mortgage Bonds $105,290 $95,171 £103,322  $104,681

State Revolving Bonds

5 1,160 s 1,170 $§ 1,233 § 1272

For ather long-term debrt for which there was no quoted
marker price, it was not practicable o estimare their fair
value. The carrying amount of these instruments was $29.8
million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respoctively.
Customer advances for construction have a carrying amount
of $22.1 million and $21.8 million at December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively. Their relative fair values cannor be
accurately estimated since furure refund payments depend
on several variables, induding new customer connections,
customer consumption levels and future rate increascs.
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Note 7 - Employee Benefit Plans

Pension

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefic
pension plan, which covers substantally all employees
with more than 1,000 hours of service. Employees
hired afeer March 31, 2007 are not eligible w participare
in this plan, but do participate in a defined contribution
plan thar provides an annual contriburion ar the discretion
of the Company based upon a percentage of the
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participants’ compensation. In order 1o be eligible for
an annual contribution, the eligible employee must be
employed by the Company on Diecember 31st of the
year the award pertains to. In addition, the Company
maintains an unfunded supplemental pension plan for
its executive officers, The Accumulated Benefit Obligarion
for all pension plans ar December 31, 2008 and 2007
was $27.5 million and $21.6 million, respecrively.

Postretivement Benefies Other Than Pensions

The Company has a postretirement benefir plan other
than pensions for substantially all of its retired emplovees,
Employees hired after March 31, 2007 are nor eligible
to participate in this plan. Coverage includes
healthcare and life insurance. Retiree contributions
are dependent on credited years of service. Accrued
retirement benefit costs are recorded each year,

The Company has recognized a deferred regulatory
asset relating to the difference berween the accrued
retirement benefir costs and actual cash paid for plan
premiums in years prior o 1998, Included in the
regulatory asset is a transition obligation from
adepting SFAS No.,106, “Employers’ Accounting

tor Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions,” on
January 1, 1993, In addition to the recognition of annual
accrued retirement benefit costs in rates, Middlesex is

also recovering the transition obligation over 15 years.
The regulatory assers ar December 31, 2008 and 2007
were $0.4 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

The Company adopred SFAS 158 on December 31,
2006. Because the Company is subject to regulation

in the states in which it operates, it is required to
maintain its accounts in accordance with the regulatory
authority’s rules and guidelines, which may differ from
other autheritative accounting pronouncements. In
those instances, the Company follows the guidance of
SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regularion,” (SFAS 71). Based on prior
regulatory pracrice, and in accordance with the
guidance provided by SFAS 71, the Company records
underfunded pension and postretirement obligations,
which otherwise would be recognized as Other
Comprehensive Income under SFAS 158, as a Regulatory
Asser, and expects to recover those costs in rates
charged to customers. The adoprion of this standard
had no impact on resules of operations or cash flows.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement date
for all of its employee benefit plans, The table below
sets forth information relating o the Company's
pension plans and other postretirement benefits for

2008 and 2007.

December 31,
{ Thouwsands afﬂaﬂan}
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2008 2007 2008 2007

Reconciliation of Projected Benefit Obligation
Beginning Balance

$ 30,167 331,728

$ 15,067 $14,698

Service Cost 1,248 1,296 775 821
Interest Cost 1,950 1,807 1,010 895
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 2,637 (3,081) 2,420 (852)
Benefits Paid (1,650) (1,583) (501) (495)
Ending Balance § 34,352 §30,167 5 18,771 $15,067

Reconciliation of Plan Assets at Fair Value
Beginning Balance

$ 24,568 §23,028

$ 7,025 § 0,701

Acrual Rerurn on Plan Assets (5,390) 1,315 (1,085) 324
Employer Contriburions 2,508 1,808 1,800 495
Benefits Paid (1,650) (1,583) (501) (495)
Ending Balance % 20,036 24,568 3 7,23 $ 7,025
Funded Status %(14,316) $(5,59% $(11,532) 5 (8,042)
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:

Current Liability (308) (308) — —
MNoncurrent Liabilicy (14,008) (5,291) (11,532) (8,042)
Net Liability Recognized $(14,316)  $(5599)  $(11,532)  $(8.042)
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Years Ended December 31,

(Thousands of Dollars)
Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Components of Net Periodic Benefic Cost
Service Cost $1,248 51296  $1,311  $ 775 § 821 % 756
Interest Cost 1,950 1,807 1,703 1,010 895 804
Expected Return on Plan Assets (1,938) (1,819)  (1,608) (581)  (481) (330)
Amortization of Net Transition Obligation — —_ — 135 135 135
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss —_— 75 258 287 337 443
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 10 10 11 — — =
Net Periodic Benefit Cost $1,270 51,369 $1,675 £1,626 51,707  $1,808

Amounts that are expected to be amortized from Regulatory Assets inta Net Periodic Benefit Cost in 2009 are as follows:

(Theusands of Dollars)
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2009
Acruarial (Gain)/Loss S 601 8579
Prior Service Cost 10 —
Transition Obligation — 135
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Weighted Average Assumptions:
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.00%  8.00% .00%  7.50% T.S50%  7.50%
Discount Rate for;
Benefit Obligation 6.17%  6.59%  5.89%  6.12% 659  5.89%
Benefir Cost 6.59%  5.89% 5.52%  6.5%% 5.89% @ 5.52%
Compensation Increase for;
Benefit Obligation 3.50%  3.50%  3.50%  3.50% 3.50%  3.50%
Benefit Cost 3.50%  3.50% 3.50%  3.50% 3.50%  3.50%

The compensation increase assumption for Other Benefits is attributable to life insurance provided to qualifying
employees upon their retirement. The insurance coverage will be determined based on the employecs base
compensation as of their retirement dare,

A 9.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed for 2008 and assumed
to decline by 1.0% per year through 2011 and by 0.5% per year o 5% by year 2014. A one-percentage point change
in assumed healtheare cost trend rates would have the following effects:

(Thousands of Dallars)
1 Percentage Point
Increase Decrease
Effect on Current Year’s Service and Benefir Cost £392 3(299)
Effect on Benefit Obligation 2,630 (2,070)
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The following benefir payments, which reflect expected Furure service, are expected o be paid:

(Thousands of Dollars)
Pension Orcher
Year Benefis Benefits
2009 § 1,630 § 546
2010 1,635 561
2011 1,688 601
2012 1,691 645
2013 1,802 691
2014-2018 10,487 4,290
Tortals 518,933 47,334
Benefir Plans Assets
The allocation of plan assers ar December 31, 2008 and 2007 by asset category is as follows:
Pension Plan (ther Benefits
Asser Category 2007 2008 2007 Targer Range
Equity Securitics 59.7% 25.7% 47 0% 60%  30-65%
Debr Securities 37.8 59.6 50.6 38% 25-70%
Cash 2.5 14.7 2.4 2% 0-10%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Two outside investment firms each manage a portion
of the pension plan asset portfolio. One of those
investment firms also manages the other postretirement
benefits assets. Quarterly meetings are held berween
the Company’s Pension Committee of the Board of
Diirectors and the investment managers o review

their performance and asser allocation. If the acrual
asset allocation is ourside the targeted range, the
Pension Committee reviews current market conditions
and advice provided by the investment managers

to determine the appropriateness of rebalancing

the portfolio.

The objective of the Company is to maximize the
long-term return on benefic plan assets, relative o

a reasonable level of risk, maintain a diversified
investment portfolio and maintain compliance with
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974. The expected long-term rare of return is based
on the various asset categories in which plan assets
are invested and the current expectations and
historical performance for these categories.

Equity securities include Middlesex common stock
in the amounts of $0.7 million (3.4% of total plan
assets) and $0.7 million (3.0 % of rotal plan assers)
at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

For the pension plan, Middlesex made rotal cash
contributions of $2.4 million and conrribured
$0.1 million in equity securities to the plan in
2008 and expects to make cash coneributions of

approximately $3.6 million in 2009,

For the postretirement health benefic plan, Middlesex
made total cash coneributions of $1.8 million in 2008
and expects to make contributions of approximately
$2.0 million in 2009.

4010k} Plan

The Company has a 401(k) defined contribution plan,
which covers substantially all employees with more
than 1,000 hours of service, Under the terms of the
Plan, the Company matches 100% of a participant’s
coneributions, which do not exceed 1% of a parricipant’s
compensation, plus 50% of a participant’s coneributions
exceeding 1%, bur not more than 6%. The Company’s
matching contributions were $0.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008 and $.04 million for cach
of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,

For those employees hired after March 31, 2007 and
still employed on December 31, 2008, the Company
approved a discretionary contribution thar was based
on 5% of eligible compensation. The Company
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expects to fund the contribution of $0.1 million
in March 2009,

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains an escrow account for
58,775 shares of the Companys common stock which
were awarded under the 1997 Restricred Stock Plan,
which has expired and 21,807 shares of the Company's
commaon stock which were awarded under the 2008
Restricted Stock Plan. Such stock is subject to an
agreement requiring forfeiture by the employee in the
event of termination of employment within five years
af the award other than as a result of retirement,
death, disability or change in control. Sharcholders

approved the new 2008 Restricted Stock Plan at

the Company’s May 21, 2008 annual meeting of
shareholders. The maximum number of shares
authorized for grant under the 2008 Restricted Stock
Plan is 300,000 shares.

The Company recognizes compensation expense at
fair value for the restricted stock awards in accordance
with SFAS No.123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”
Compensation expense is determined by the market
value of the stock on the date of the award and is
being amortized over a five-year period,

The following rable presents information on the

Restricted Stock Plan:

Weighted
(I Thousands Excepr Unearned Average
Corant Price) Shares Compensation Grant Price
Balance, January 1, 2006 56 S700
Granted 21 405 $19.24
Vested (1)
Forfeired (2) (38)
Amortization of
Compensation
Expense (271)
Balance, December 31, 2006 04 796
Granrted 18 344 £19.10
Vested (10}
Forfeired (1 (3)
Amortization of
Compensation
Expense (276)
Balance, December 31, 2007 71 %861
Granred 22 377 $17.30
Vested (12)
Forfeited (5)
Amortization of
Compensation
Expense (305)
Balance, December 31, 2008 81 £928

Note 8 - Business Segment Data

The Company has identified two reportable segments.
One is the regulated business of collecting, treating
and distributing water on a retail and wholesale

basis to residential, commercial, industrial and fire
protection customers in parts of New Jersey and
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Delaware. This segment also includes regulared
wastewater systems in New Jersey and Delaware.

The Company is subject to regulations as to its rates,
services and other matters by the states of New Jersey
and Delaware with respect to utility service within
these states, The other segment is primarily comprised
of non-regulated conrract services for the operation
and maintenance of municipal and private water and
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wastewarer systems in New Jersey and Delaware, charges on inter-segment loan activities are based on
Inter-segment transactions relating to operational interest rates that are below what would normally
costs are treated as pass-through expenses. Finance be charged by a third party lender.

Years Ended December 31,

(Thonsands of Dollars)

Operations by Segments: 2008 2007 2006
Revenues:

Regulared $81,118 $77.113 $71,948

Non — Regulated 10,327 9,392 9,317
Inter-segment Elimination (407) (391) (204)
Consolidated Revenues $91,038 $80,114 $81,061
Operating [ncome:

Regulated $22,132 321,351 $20,062

Non — Regulated 1,887 1,320 1,256
Consolidared Operating Income $24,019 $22,671 21,318
Depreciarion:

Regulated $ 7,798 $ 7,408 $ 6,936

Non — Regulated 124 131 124
Consolidated Depreciation $ 7.922 $ 7.539 5 7,060
Other Income, Net:

Regulared § 1,077 % 1,643 § 951

Non — Regulated 387 - (78)
Inter-segment Elimination (162) (116) (99)
Consolidated Other Income, Net $ 1,302 § 1,527 § 774
Interest Expense:

Regulated 5 6,981 $ 6,619 § 7.012

Non — Regulated 238 116 99
Inter-segment Elimination (162) (116) (99)
Consolidated Interest Charges $ 7.057 $ 6,619 $ 7,012
Met Income:

Regulated $10,976 $11,120 $ 9,417

MNon — Regulated 1,232 723 622
Consolidated Net Income 512,208 §11,843 810,039
Capiral Expenditures:

Regulated $27,188 §21,586 530,492

Mon — Regulared 1,241 344 242
Total Capital Expenditures $28,429 $21,930 $30,734

As of December 31,
2008 2007

Assets:
Regulated $433,109 $387,931
MNon — Regulated 11,537 8,157
Inter-segment Elimination (4,646) (3,413)

Consolidared Assers $440,000 $392,675
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Note 9 - Quarterly Operating Results - Unaudited

Operating results for each quarrer of 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(Thousands of Dollars, Except per Share Data)

2008 13t Ind 3rd dth Total
Operating Revenues $20,855 523,035 525,653 $21,495 $91,038
Operating Income 4,347 6,825 8,384 4,463 24,019
Net Income 2,004 3,565 4,715 1,924 12,208
Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.15 $ 0.26 5 035 5 0.14 5 090
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.5 5 0.26 5 035 $ 013 5 0.89
2007

Operating Revenues $18.988 321,745 $24,135 $21,246 580,114
Operating Income 3,722 6,279 7,729 4,941 22,671
Net Income 1,769 3,313 4,158 2,603 11,843
Basic Earnings per Share $ 013 $ 025 $ 031 § 019 § 0.88
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 013 $ 0.24 § 031 $ 019 $ 0.87

The information above, in the opinion of the Company, includes all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring
accruals necessary for a fair presentation of such amounts. The business of the Company is subject o seasonal
fluctuation with the peak period usually occurring during the summer months,

COMMON STOCK MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE

2008 2007
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quarter 519.83 £17.25 50.1750 $19.07 $17.75 $0.1725
Second Quarter 19.23 16.59 0.1750 19.48 18.12 0.1725
Third Quarter 18.52 15.68 0.1750 20.24 18.05 0.1725
Fourth Quarter 17.93 12.05 01775 19.25 18.10 0.1750
Schedule of Dividend Dates for the Year 2009*
Declaration Record Payment Ex. Dividend
Dates Dates Dates Dazes
Common _l:lnu:lr’\.l 20 F:brua.r]r 13 March 2 i":.'l:rru:lrf!tr 11
April 28 May 15 June 1 May 13
July 28 August 14 Seprember 1 Auguse 12
Ocrober 28 November 13 Diecember 1 November 11
Preferred December 17°* January 15 February 2 January 13
March 24 April 15 May 1 April 13
June 23 July 15 August 3 July 13
Scptcmh:r 21 October 15 November 2 October 13

® Subject o approval by Board of Directors  *2008
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Safie Harbor - This Annual Repart contains forward-looking statements an a number of subjects.

They are based on the Company’s current exp

ions and are subject to a number of risks and

u

uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially, Dur SEC filings ientify factors that could
affect those results, Please refer to those documents for additional information,
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